City of Mississauga Department Comments

Date Finalized: 2024-10-25 File(s): A447.24

Ward: 1
To: Committee of Adjustment

From: Committee of Adjustment Coordinator
Meeting date:2024-10-31
1:00:00 PM

Consolidated Recommendation
The City recommends that the Committee have regard for all comments and evidence provided
by the applicant and area residents when assessing if the application meets the requirements of

Section 45(1) of the Planning Act. The applicant may wish to defer the application to ensure that
all required variances have been accurately identified.

Application Details
The applicant requests the Committee to approve a minor variance to allow a second kitchen

(spice kitchen) in a dwelling unit whereas By-law 0225-2007, as amended permits one kitchen
per dwelling unit in this instance.

Background

Property Address: 1291 Mineola Gardens
Mississauga Official Plan

Character Area: Mineola Neighborhood
Designation: Greenlands; Residential Low Density |

Zoning By-law 0225-2007
Zoning: G1, R3-1 - Residential
Other Applications: None

Site and Area Context
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The subject property is located within the Mineola Neighborhood Character Area, northeast of
the Hurontario Street and Lakeshore Road East Intersection. The surrounding neighbourhood
consists of one, one and a half and two storey-detached dwellings with mature vegetation in
both the front and rear yards. The subject property contains an existing one-storey dwelling with
vegetation in the front yard.

The applicant is proposing a new two-storey detached dwelling requesting a variance for
number of kitchens.

Comments

Planning

Section 45 of the Planning Act provides the Committee of Adjustment with the authority to grant
relief from the requirements of a municipal zoning by-law. Approval of applications must meet
the requirements set out under 45(1) and/or 45(2) (a) or (b) in the Planning Act.

Staff comments concerning the application are as follows:

The subject property is located in the Mineola Neighbourhood Character Area and is designated
Greenlands and Residential Low Density | in Schedule 10 of the Mississauga Official Plan
(MOP).

The sole variance requests an additional spice kitchen within the dwelling. The original intent of
the restriction on second kitchens was to restrict the creation of second dwelling units. Given the
implementation of second unit policies as well as new provincial and municipal legislation
regulating three and four dwelling units as of right, additional kitchens are minor in nature. The
proposed additional kitchen does not impact the streetscape, adjacent properties or the
neighbourhood.
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Through a detailed review of the application, staff are of the opinion that the application is
appropriate to be handled through the minor variance process. Further, the application raises no
concerns of a planning nature.

Comments Prepared by: Shivani Chopra, Committee of Adjustment Planner
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Appendices

Appendix 1 — Transportation and Works Comments

This Department has no objections, comments or requirements with respect to C.A. ‘A’ 447.24.
We are noting for Committee’s information that any Transportation and Works Department

concerns/requirements for the dwelling are being addressed by our Development Construction
Section through the Building Permit process, File BP 9ALT 24/4141.

Comments Prepared by: John Salvino, Development Engineering Technologist
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Appendix 2 — Zoning Comments

We note that a Building Permit is required. In the absence of a Building Permit, we are unable
to confirm the accuracy of the information provided or determine whether additional variance(s)
may be required. It should be noted that a zoning review has NOT been completed.

The applicant is advised that should they choose to proceed without zoning verification, a full
zoning review may result in further variances being required in the future.

Comments Prepared by: Emily Majeed, Planner-in-Training

Appendix 3 — Parks, Forestry & Environment

The Parks and Culture Planning Section of the Community Services Department has no
objections to the above noted minor variance application and advises as follows:

The lands to the rear of the property are owned by the City of Mississauga, identified as
Not To Be Named (P-237) *(SE of Elaine Tr, NW of Claredale Rd), classified as a
Significant Natural Area within the City’s Natural Heritage System, and zoned G1.
Section 6.3.24 of the Mississauga Official Plan states that the Natural Heritage System
will be protected, enhanced, restored and expanded through the following measures:

a) ensuring that development in or adjacent to the Natural Heritage System
protects and maintains the natural heritage features and their ecological
functions through such means as tree preservation, appropriate location of
building envelopes, grading, landscaping...;

Should the application be approved, Community Services provides the following notes:

1. Construction access from the adjacent park/greenlands is not permitted.

2. If access is required to City owned lands, a Consent to Enter Agreement/Park Access
Permit will be required.

3. Stockpiling of construction materials and encroachment in the adjacent park/greenlands
is not permitted.

Should further information be required, please contact Nicholas Rocchetti, Planner — Park
Planning, Community Services Department at 905-615-3200 ext. 4659 or via email
nicholas.rocchetti@mississauga.ca.

Comments Prepared by: Nicholas Rocchetti, Planner
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Appendix 4 — Region of Peel

Minor Variance Application: A-24-447M /1291 Mineola Gardens
Note: Petrele Francois (petrele.francois@peelregion.ca)|(905) 791-7800 x3356
e Please be advised that the subject lands are located in the regulated area
of the Credit Valley Conservation Authority (CVC). We request that City
staff consider comments from the CVC and incorporate their conditions of
approval appropriately.
Comments Prepared by: Petrele Francois, Junior Planner

Appendix 5-CVC

Please see below CVC comments for minor variance application for above-mentioned subject
property:

Based on the review of the information provided, CVC has no objection with the minor variance
proposed at this time as all works proposed relates to interior renovations.

The applicant is advised that the property is regulated by CVC flood and slope hazard
associated with Cooksville Creek and all future works will require a CVC permit.

Comments Prepared by: Stuti Bhatt, Junior Planner
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